
 

1  

  

  1 

LONDONDERRY ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  2 

268B MAMMOTH ROAD  3 

LONDONDERRY, NH 03053  4 

  5 

MINUTES FROM 09/18/19 MEETING  6 

  7 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.  Members introduced themselves.  The following 8 
members were present:  Neil Dunn, Chair; Jacqueline Benard, Vice Chair; Jim Tirabassi, Clerk; 9 
Suzanne Brunelle, member; Bill Berardino, member; Brendan O'Brien, alternate member and Mitch 10 
Feig, alternate member.  Also, in attendance were Laura Gandia, Associate Planner; Richard Canuel, 11 
Chief Building Inspector, Health Officer, Zoning Administrator & Code Enforcement Officer and Beth 12 
Morrison, Recording Secretary. Chairman Dunn reviewed the hearing procedures.  13 

 14 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   15 

 16 

J. Tirabassi made a motion to accept the August 21, 2019, minutes as presented. 17 

  18 

The motion was seconded by S. Brunelle. 19 

 20 

The motion was granted, 4-0-1. 21 

 22 

II. REPORT BY TOWN COUNCIL – N/A  23 

 24 

III. REGIONAL IMPACT DETERMINATIONS:  Members J. Benard and B. O’Brien recused 25 

themselves from this case. Chairman Dunn made M. Feig a voting member.  26 

 27 

J. Tirabassi made a motion that the Board find that CASE NO. 8/21/19-3, a request for a 28 

variance from LZO section 4.2.1.3.4.D to allow a water tank 156 feet in height, where 29 

only 35 feet in height is allowed, Seven Rear Gordon Drive, Map 10, Lot 142, Zoned AR-30 

1, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. (Owner & Applicant) is not of regional impact.  31 

  32 

The motion was seconded by S. Brunelle. 33 

 34 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. 35 

 36 

Member J. Benard and B. O’Brien came back to the Board for this case. Member S. Brunelle recused herself 37 

from this case. Chairman Dunn made M. Feig a voting member for this case.  38 



 

2  

  

 39 

 J. Tirabassi made a motion that the Board find that CASE NO. 7/17/19-5, a request for 40 

a variance from LZO 7.6.D.5.d to allow a free standing sign to be placed 0 feet from the 41 

property line where 10 feet is required, 6A Kitty Hawk Landing, Map 17 Lot 5-6, Zoned 42 

IND-I, Falling Water, LLC (Owner) and Jutras Signs (Applicant) is not of regional impact. 43 

  44 

The motion was seconded by M. Feig. 45 

 46 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. 47 

 48 

Member J. Benard and B. O’Brien came back to the Board for this case.  49 

 50 

J. Tirabassi made a motion that that the Board find that CASE NO. 9/18/19-1, a request 51 

for a variance from LZO 4.6.1.6.A.1 to allow in the conservation overlay district the 52 

construction of an addition (45 SF impact) on a dwelling that did not exist prior to the 53 

adoption of section 4.6.1 Conservation Overlay District that is otherwise prohibited, 54 

Eight Tanager Way, Map 5 Lot 10-34, Zoned AR-1, Ouellette Family Trust (Owner) and 55 

Jeff Moulton (Applicant) 56 

  57 

The motion was seconded by S. Brunelle. 58 

 59 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. 60 

 61 

IV. PUBLIC HEARING OF CASES  62 

 63 

A. CASE NO. 8/21/19-3: Request for a variance from LZO section 4.2.1.3.4.D to allow a water 64 

tank 156 feet in height, where only 35 feet in height is allowed, Seven Rear Gordon Drive, Map 65 

10, Lot 142, Zoned AR-1, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. (Owner & Applicant) – continued from 66 

the August 21, 2019 meeting 67 

 68 

J. Tirabassi read the case into the record noting the case was continued from the August 21, 2019, 69 

meeting. Members J. Benard and B. O’Brien recused themselves from this case. Patricia Panciocco, Esq., 70 

from Panciocco Law, One Club Acre Lane, Bedford, NH, addressed the Board. P. Panciocco told the Board 71 

that John Boisvert, Chief Engineer from Pennichuck East Utility, Inc., 25 Manchester Street, NH, as well 72 

as Ken Clinton, President of Meridian Land Services, Inc., 31 Old Nashua Road, #2, Amherst, NH and 73 

Devon Smith, P.E., Project Engineer, Underwood Engineers, are in the audience and will address the 74 

Board tonight. P. Panciocco pointed out for the record the typographical error in her zoning citation on 75 



 

3  

  

her application noting the correct zoning reference is 4.2.1.3.D.  She added that said error was not 76 

material to the matter proceeding.  77 

 78 

N. Dunn told the applicant that he was requesting that all participants try to be cognizant of the time and 79 

condense the material presented in relation to the five points of law. P. Panciocco said she would do her 80 

best to stick to the five points of law, but felt that with the number of people from the community here 81 

tonight, they would also need to explain why a water tank is needed. She said that they are here tonight 82 

to request a variance to have a water tank that is 156 feet high at Seven Rear Gordon Drive on an eight 83 

acre parcel. She noted that Pennichuck East Utility (PEU) acquired the property in 1986 and the deed 84 

restricts the use of this property proposed by a covenant to provide public water for surrounding lots in 85 

the development and as regulated by the Public Utilities Commission (PUC). She explained that in Section 86 

4.2.1.3.D the height of a structure is limited to 35 feet on this parcel with exception of agricultural 87 

structures, such as a barn. She commented that PEU must comply with all New Hampshire Department 88 

of Environmental Services (NHDES) rules as well as PUC’s rules to serve the public.  89 

 90 

John Boisvert, Chief engineer for (PEU) addressed the Board. J. Boisvert informed the Board that PEU has 91 

been observing the numbers for Londonderry getting close to the regional limits of what their pumps, 92 

source and supply can deliver into the Londonderry system. He told the Board that PEU has to deliver 93 

both domestic needs, as well as fire protection, and with the growth in Londonderry, the domestic 94 

demand runs into the capacity for fire protection. He pointed out that this project is not here because of 95 

the Woodmont Commons development stating that PEU would be before the Board even if Woodmont 96 

was not being developed. He said that there is a relationship between Woodmont and PEU as Woodmont 97 

is going to contribute to the cost of the water tank.  98 

 99 

Ken Clinton, President of Meridian Land Services, Inc., addressed the Board. K. Clinton reviewed the 100 

existing features of the property with the Board, noting that access to the property is through and 101 

“unnamed way” of Gordon Drive that was created in the 1970s with the subdivision. He said that the 102 

property was surveyed and flagged for wetlands and the tank is proposed in the middle third of the lot 103 

as far as possible from any neighboring properties. He noted that there will not be an office or facilities 104 

on the lot, only a water tank that will be inspected and maintained on a periodic basis. He pointed out 105 

that to the right of the “unnamed way” is near the Martin residence, which is the closest house to the 106 

tank with a natural tree buffer of 160 feet.  107 

 108 

John Boisvert addressed the Board again. He referenced a power point presentation that was submitted 109 

to the Town this afternoon. He reviewed the Town’s water system where it comes in from Manchester 110 

Water Works (MWW) down to Mountain Home Estates booster station, which sets the pressure 111 

throughout most of Londonderry. He noted that this serves about 1,100 customers. He said that the 112 

pumps are not going to be able to keep up with the demands of normal growth plus Woodmont 113 



 

4  

  

Commons. He said that PEU could put larger pumps in, but cannot draw the amount of water from 114 

MWW, and therefore water needs to be stored somewhere in this system for use during the peak hours. 115 

He commented that one of the benefits of having an elevated water tank would be resiliency, stating 116 

that if a water main breaks there is now water that is being stored in the system that they can rely upon. 117 

He said that the tank has the lowest life cycle cost and Woodmont Commons has offered to pay 51% of 118 

the cost of the tank. He explained that they looked at 14 other sites where the tank would be at a 119 

reasonable height from an engineering perspective. He pointed out that all but two of the fourteen sites 120 

are in residential neighborhoods.  He told the Board that if the tank was constructed at another site on 121 

Route 102 it would have to be approximately 250 feet high to maintain flows and pressure of the system. 122 

He said that if the tank was constructed at other sites, PEU would have to construct somewhere between 123 

8,000 and 10,000 feet of water main to provide services as opposed to a tank. He presented pictures for 124 

the Board of other water tanks for them to review.  125 

 126 

Patricia Panciocco addressed the Board again. P. Panciocco reiterated that Woodmont Commons is not 127 

the reason they are here before the Board tonight. She said that the normal growth of the town is a 128 

factor for the need of the water tank. She stated that this site has been picked as the best option for a 129 

water tank. She then reviewed the five criteria for the granting of the variance:   130 

 131 

(1)  The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because it will not threaten the 132 

health, safety or welfare of the general public. She also noted that in her opinion, she does not 133 

believe that the 35 foot height limit in the ordinance was ever intended for a water tower, but for 134 

residential homes. She said the tank will not produce noise, have no traffic, be screened and serviced 135 

once a week. 136 

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed:  because it will not alter the essential character of the 137 

neighborhood as it will make no noise, produce no traffic and will be screened as best as possible.  138 

(3) Substantial justice is done:  because the loss to PEU is a loss suffered by the public because the only 139 

other option to expand the capacity of the Londonderry Core Water System is a much more costly 140 

upgrade of the pumps at the North Station and the water mains along Mammoth Road. She added 141 

that strict enforcement provides no public benefit, especially when the public can only gain by the 142 

water tank’s installation.   143 

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished:  because the water tank will be set as far back 144 

as possible from Gordon Drive on the southerly side and most likely will not be seen from Gordon 145 

Drive.   146 

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the 147 

ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the 148 

property is unique as it has no legal frontage and was intended to accommodate water equipment 149 

for the benefit of Gordon Drive residents. She stated that the proposed use is a reasonable one. 150 



 

5  

  

 151 

Chairman Dunn asked if the Board had any questions. 152 

 153 

S. Brunelle asked about the easement deed language regarding the water pump station. J. Boisvert 154 

responded that the water pump station is not there anymore as it was abandoned a few years back. S. 155 

Brunelle discussed that the easement granting or allowing the property to be used for water versus it 156 

being restricted to just water use. P. Panciocco explained that the warranty deed (Exhibit 1) for the 157 

property noted at Book 2581 Page 189 at the Registry of Deeds states: “this conveyance is made subject 158 

to the duty of the grantee and his heir’s successors and assigned to provide adequate water to all the 159 

lots currently connected to the well situated on said lot. This conveyance is made subject to the further 160 

condition that the water shall be provided and the water, the well and any equipment and fixtures that 161 

are pertinent to the well, shall be maintained in accordance with the standards and regulations 162 

promulgated by the New Hampshire Public Utility Commission and other public agencies that have 163 

jurisdiction over the supply of public water.” J. Boisvert told the Board that the wells that were on this 164 

site were in poor quality and their predecessor ran pipe line up Hovey Road to the east and connected it 165 

to the Londonderry Core System as their replacement source of water. He noted that due to the growth 166 

of Londonderry this system is in diminished capacity to meet the needs of the public and the water tank 167 

would service the needs of Londonderry. P. Panciocco provided the Board with a plan number, B-10440, 168 

(Exhibit 1-A) recorded in the Registry of Deeds, which labels this lot as a water supply lot. S. Brunelle 169 

asked how the Fire Department would use this water for fires. J. Boisvert said that this water tank will 170 

be connected through pipe lines to the distribution system that is connected to the existing fire hydrant 171 

lines now. S. Brunelle stated that she has never seen a fire hydrant in Londonderry. Chairman Dunn noted 172 

that there are a few wherever residents have public water. J. Tirabassi asked what the decrease in the 173 

flow per minute would be if the tank was lowered by ten feet. J. Boisvert responded that it would 174 

decrease a couple pounds per square inch and two to three pounds up in the higher elevations. J. 175 

Tirabassi asked why there is a difference in pressure in the households in Londonderry. J. Boisvert 176 

explained that the pressure is relative to the houses elevation in relation to the pump. Chairman Dunn 177 

asked about noise, stating that he heard there are pumps at the location that will make noise. J. Boisvert 178 

stated that there are no pumps and the tank will not make noise. Chairman Dunn said that it seems like 179 

the Mountain Home station is going into failure and this would only add to the failure. J. Boisvert 180 

explained that by no means are the Mountain Home station is going into failure, but rather the pumps 181 

currently in the station are not large enough to supply the demands of Londonderry without storage on 182 

the upstream side. He added that even if PEU upsizes the pumps, there are limitations on what they can 183 

draw from Manchester. S. Brunelle told the applicant that she has two issues with this application, which 184 

are altering the essential character of the neighborhood and the possible impact to the values of the 185 

surrounding properties. She asked if the applicant had anything to present regarding the impact to the 186 

value of the surrounding properties. P. Panciocco responded that they do not, as their position is this 187 

tank is a public utility that is a basic need to the public at large. She added that this is a heavily wooded 188 



 

6  

  

lot and the tank is being placed as far away from the residences that currently exist. J. Tirabassi asked 189 

what PEU has at the station for pumps. J. Boisvert answered that there are three pumps at the Mountain 190 

Home station that can provide up to 2,400 gallons a minute, however, they look at the capacity of a 191 

system and one of the pumps has the potential to fail at some point in time, so it would be 1,500 gallons 192 

a minute. J. Tirabassi asked if the size of the pumps could be increased instead of building a water tank. 193 

J. Boisvert said that the pumps could be increased a small amount perhaps, but the issue is when drawing 194 

more water the pressures can drop below the minimum flows on the line coming down Mammoth Road, 195 

which in turn could cause a contamination issue or backflow. N. Dunn asked if they had backflow 196 

preventers. J. Boisvert said that state law requires PEU to have backflow preventers for commercial or 197 

industrial use, but not residential at this time. Chairman Dunn read from the deed noting it said “the 198 

conveyance is made subject to the duty of the grantee and its heirs, successors and assigned to provide 199 

adequate water to all lots currently connected,” which would be Gordon Drive and wondered how that 200 

translates to the public at large. J. Boisvert responded that when PEU bought this, the system was already 201 

connected to the existing public water system supplying all the other residents in the town of 202 

Londonderry. S. Brunelle asked for the percentage of the population in Londonderry that uses 203 

Pennichuck. J. Boisvert stated that he did not have the exact numbers, but he believed it to be 1,800 to 204 

2,000 customers at this point in time. He added that NHDES has them at a population of 3,300, but he 205 

was unsure of how they arrived at their figures. 206 

 207 

Chairman Dunn opened it up to the public.  208 

 209 

J. Tirabassi read a letter (Exhibit A) in opposition to the record. Chairman Dunn asked for clarification 210 

regarding notification of abutters. L. Gandia replied that notification of abutters is governed by state 211 

statute. 212 

 213 

Matt Augeri, 34 Kitt Lane, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. M. Augeri voiced his 214 

concern about the power point presentation the applicant presented to the Board that was received an 215 

hour ago. Chairman Dunn asked for clarification about public records. L. Gandia responded the power 216 

point is a public records and available to the public.  She noted that many residents have called or come 217 

in to the office and have received all the information that she had available at the time of the request.  218 

M. Augeri said that he believes the variance violates the first and fourth point of law. He presented a 219 

drawing, which was extracted from a drawing submitted by Pennichuck, noting that the water tank would 220 

be four to five times the allowable height of the current zoning ordinance. He said that he believes the 221 

tank will an eyesore to the horizon, as well as covered by graffiti and is not in the best interest of the 222 

public. He commented that he thinks there must be better alternatives to what has been presented 223 

tonight. He said that it is his opinion that this will lower his property value and surrounding property 224 

values. He presented the Board with a petition (Exhibit B) of residents against the variance.  225 

 226 



 

7  

  

Don Ally, 41 Wiley Hill Road, addressed the Board in opposition of the variance. D. Ally said in his opinion 227 

as he is a realtor with over 25 years of experience, this will negatively affect the property values of the 228 

surrounding homes. He said that he has been a resident of Londonderry for 32 years now and does not 229 

believe a water tank in a residential area is the best choice. He offered a suggestion of building the water 230 

tank in a parking lot at Market Basket and then the people who by homes/apartments that are built 231 

around the tower will be fully aware of what they are buying. He added that the spirit of the ordinance 232 

would be violated, as there is a 35 feet height limit so there would not be a structure greater than that 233 

built in this residential area.  234 

 235 

Greta Swisher, 15 Bear Meadow Road, addressed the Board in opposition of the variance. G. Swisher 236 

told the Board that she is also a realtor and she concurs with D. Ally that the values of the surrounding 237 

properties will be negatively affected by the water tank.  238 

 239 

Karen Martin, 28 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. K. Martin informed 240 

the Board that she is a direct abutter, whom was mentioned by K. Clinton, and there are no dense trees 241 

that will block her view of the tank. She voiced her concern regarding the second point of law regarding 242 

how safe the area has been described as she believes the land in questions is unstable as the vernal pools 243 

in the spring are located in different areas. She said that after living in this house for thirty years, she is 244 

experiencing water in her basement now and had to have a sump pump installed. She stated that 245 

Woodmont is a development of over 600 acres and as this tank will benefit them, it should be placed on 246 

their land.  247 

 248 

Chairman Dunn brought the discussion back to the applicant to answer questions. He asked about noise. 249 

J. Boisvert told the Board that the water tank will make no noise as there is no pump station there. 250 

Chairman Dunn asked if there was a water tank that residents could listen to and make sure there is no 251 

noise. J. Boisvert responded that there is one at Salisbury, Exeter and Portsmouth that they could listen 252 

to. Chairman Dunn asked about wetlands and vernal pools moving over time. J. Boisvert said that they 253 

had a geotechnical consultant who confirmed that the foundation conditions are okay for this type of 254 

water tank.  255 

 256 

John Ferreira, 58 Hovey Road, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. J. Ferreira informed 257 

the Board that the cable company years ago had asked for a variance in this location to exceed the 35 258 

feet height restriction for a tower and additional satellite dishes. He told the Board that the variance was 259 

denied and the same criteria would apply. He expressed his concern that the water tank would alter the 260 

essential character of the neighborhood, as the conveyance in the deed was for the residents of Gordon 261 

Drive neighborhood only. He added that he believed this would be contrary to the public interest. He 262 

asked if they had asked Woodmont to build a water tank on their property. He also asked what the rate 263 

increase would be for all the users of the PEU system if the cost was not abated by Woodmont and the 264 



 

8  

  

tower was built elsewhere. Chairman Dunn told him that these questions would be for the Planning 265 

Board and are out of the purview of this Board.  266 

 267 

Rachel Lessard, 38 Kitt Lane, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. R. Lessard said that she 268 

has lived here for 32 years and was always under the impression that this piece of land in question was 269 

a water well system for the Gordon Drive residents. She expressed her concern that the water tank will 270 

decrease her property value.  271 

 272 

Linda Boles, 57 Hovey Road, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. L. Boles submitted aerial 273 

pictures (Exhibit C) to the Board of the parcel in questions that show there are not dense woods that 274 

would block the water tower from the neighborhood. She pointed out that when PEU went before the 275 

Planning Board for the conceptual discussion, Chairman Rugg told PEU to reach out to the concerned 276 

neighbors to hear the concerns or issues. She said that PEU did not reach out and this was disappointing 277 

to her as they have a lot of language in their variance request noting that they are going to be good 278 

neighbors. She said that she echoes the concerns of her neighbors that her property value will be 279 

decreased.  280 

 281 

Leanne Augeri, 34 Kitt Lane, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. L. Augeri commented 282 

that she believes the variance will be contrary to the public interest because of the noise of construction, 283 

potential blasting, excavation, vehicles and traffic noise. She expressed her concern regarding the 284 

potential impact to the wetlands and vernal pools in relation to the wildlife. She added that wetlands act 285 

as water filtration systems according to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and could affect 286 

water quality to the neighborhood. She told the Board that this water tank should be built in a dry, 287 

commercial area, not a residential one.  288 

 289 

Julianne Mauceri, One Dragonfly Way, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. J. Mauceri 290 

commented that she is concerned about the size of the base of the water tank and what might be allowed 291 

to be built on top of the water tank. She specifically asked if there would be blasting for this project and 292 

if it would impact the surrounding wells. She added that she believes the value of her home would be 293 

diminished.  294 

 295 

Richard Dillon, 23 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. R. Dillon stated that 296 

variances should be granted when there are no other options. He told the Board that other towns have 297 

addressed these same concerns utilizing other design options, citing Manchester’s two tanks that hold 298 

three million gallons of water that are well below the tree lines. He submitted a picture (Exhibit D) of 299 

Manchester’s two tanks. He reviewed the PEU’s two proposals to address this problem, noting the first 300 

option is to upgrade the existing pump and capacity along with pipeline upgrades and the second was 301 

the water tank that would provide 100% fire flow to Woodmont and to buffer peak demand fluctuations. 302 



 

9  

  

He read John Boisvert’s testimony when he was before the PUC for approval of the 51% contribution 303 

from Woodmont Commons stating, “because a larger storage tank is necessary to serve Woodmont 304 

Commons. It is of considerable expense, it does not benefit the entire water system and is not a main 305 

extension project” and submitted it (Exhibit E) for the Board. He noted that during the master planning 306 

for Woodmont, the Woodmont developers stated there was an adequate water supply in order for the 307 

plan approval to take place, and questioned the validity of the master plan data. He reviewed slide 11 of 308 

the applicant’s power point presentation with the Board noting there is an option for a water tank on 309 

Woodmont, as well as other sites in town. He stated that in his opinion, the values of the surrounding 310 

property values would be diminished.  311 

 312 

Chairman Dunn asked the applicant to address the questions that were presented during public 313 

comments. J. Boisvert told the Board that when PEU has a project that does not fall within the PUC’s 314 

tariff requirements they have to get a special contract and go before the PUC. He stated that if 315 

Woodmont Commons were not a part of this, the tank would be smaller and less storage would be 316 

needed, but the height would not change. He pointed out that the height of the two tanks in Manchester 317 

would not supply the appropriate pressure for Londonderry. He explained that during testing they did 318 

not encounter any ledge until 18 feet and the foundation for the tank would be at eight feet, so they do 319 

not anticipate any blasting for this project. He added that it is also common to build facilities where there 320 

is groundwater in respect to the questions regarding the wetlands. P. Panciocco asked if the Board would 321 

be willing to continue the case in order for the applicant to address the concerns of the abutters and 322 

specifically look further into the impact to the values of the homes by professional studies.  323 

 324 

Matt Augeri, 34 Kitt Lane, addressed the Board again in opposition. M. Augeri told the Board that it is 325 

unacceptable to him for the case to be continued as the applicant had time to prepare and submit a 326 

realtor appraisal.  327 

 328 

Marc Bourque, 26 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. M. Bourque 329 

expressed his concern that the property values are going to be diminished and the trees will not conceal 330 

the water tank. 331 

 332 

Robert Saur, Four Mountain Home Road, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. R. Saur told 333 

the Board that he believed a statement made by the applicant in their application regarding water tanks 334 

in Londonderry to be incorrect, as there currently are tanks in north Londonderry. He said that PEU is 335 

servicing about 20% of the town with his research, so this project is not for the whole town, but just 336 

those residents they service. He added that there are other alternatives that have not been presented 337 

and did not believe there was any hardship to the applicant. 338 

 339 



 

10  

  

Walter Stocks, 39 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. W. Stocks presented 340 

the Board (Exhibit F) two plans from 1974 that designate the parcel in question for recreational and 341 

water supply. He asked if the applicant had submitted a plan to the Fire Department for their comments. 342 

He presented the Board with a picture of a tank (Exhibit G) that he took today for their review. Chairman 343 

Dunn told him that the Fire Department would have comments during a site plan with the Planning 344 

Board.  345 

 346 

Ray Breslin, Three Gary Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. R. Breslin said that 347 

there are other options that have not been explored and should be. He asked who would pay the 49% of 348 

the tank if Woodmont is paying 51%. He asked if the Board had seen the water quality study that had 349 

been completed. Chairman Dunn asked L. Gandia about the study. L. Gandia said the study was 350 

completed, but she did not have any information regarding it.  351 

 352 

John Romanowski, Five Spring Road, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. J. Romanowski 353 

pointed out that the estimated cost of replacing the lines and pumps is $3,100,000 and the tank costs 354 

$2,835,000 for a difference of roughly $275,000. He went on further to say that the $275,000 over 30 355 

years comes out to about $9,100 a year spread out between 3,000 PEU customers equals $3.00 per year 356 

for a customer to not build a tank. He expressed concern that the tank will have a limited capacity and is 357 

a band-aid rather than solving the problem of Londonderry needing more water. He said that he felt the 358 

water tank would be contrary to the public interest as it would not solve the problem and the property 359 

values would be diminished. He presented the Board with a picture (Exhibit H) of a water tank for their 360 

review. 361 

 362 

Chairman Dunn called for a five minute break. J. Benard left the meeting at 10:20 p.m.  363 

 364 

Chairman Dunn called the meeting back to order after the five minute break.  365 

 366 

Helen Provencher, Nine Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. H. Provencher 367 

stated that this tank would absolutely affect her property value as she used to be a realtor for over 25 368 

years. She presented the neighborhood covenants (Exhibit I) to the Board for their review. She asked if 369 

there was a pump station in the south part of town to service Home Depot.  370 

 371 

J. Boisvert said that the Mountain Home station has a maximum capacity of 2,400 gallons a minute and 372 

south Londonderry has a 1,300 gallon a minute capacity. He stated that if a pump were out of service 373 

and they lost the south Londonderry pump, they could only supply 658 gallons a minute to south 374 

Londonderry. He noted that the south Londonderry pump does not get water up to Gordon Drive. He 375 

told the Board that the 49% left to pay for the tank would come from an agreement with MWW that if a 376 

tank is built in Londonderry the water rate will decrease by about $.25 per cubic foot.  377 



 

11  

  

 378 

David Nease, 11 Faye Lane, addressed the Board in opposition of the variance. D. Nease asked if they 379 

were going to put any red beacons on top of this tank for air traffic. He also said that it is common after 380 

a tank is built to lease space to cell phone towers at this site as well and asked if there were any plans to 381 

do this. He asked if Woodmont would still pay 51% if the tank was placed on their land.  382 

 383 

Gary Maffei, 30 Wedgewood Drive, addressed the Board in opposition to the variance. G. Maffei told the 384 

Board that he would not have built his house here, 30 years ago, if a water tank was there.  385 

 386 

Jim Kenney, 34 Gordon Drive addressed the Board in opposition of the variance. J. Kenney told the Board 387 

that there are roughly 200 homes in the neighborhood and if each of those homes lost 10% of their 388 

property value that would equal seven million dollars in reduction.  389 

 390 

Bill Kenney, 42 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition. B. Kenney told the Board that he 391 

believes this tank will decrease the property values of the neighborhood.  392 

 393 

Jack Martin, 28 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board in opposition. J. Martin told the Board that he is 394 

worried about crime with the tank. He said that he had dirt mounds put over the opening to Spring Road 395 

before and does not want it to be reopened.  396 

 397 

Karen Martin, 28 Gordon Drive, addressed the Board again in opposition. K. Martin read the Board an 398 

email (Exhibit J) that she received from her neighbor who could not be at the meeting.  399 

 400 

John Ferreria, 58 Hovey Road, addressed the Board again in opposition. J. Ferreria told the Board that 401 

they have faith in PEU to go back before the PUC and work out an alternative rather than this water tank.  402 

 403 

Chairman Dunn asked if the Board had any questions, as there was no further public comment. He asked 404 

if any light beacons would be needed for this tank. J. Boisvert said that no beacons are needed. Chairman 405 

Dunn asked if they would be leasing out the space to cell phone towers. J. Boisvert responded that they 406 

would not. He noted that they have contacted the Fire Department to let them know that they would 407 

allow a spot on the tank for their communication. Chairman Dunn asked if Woodmont would still cover 408 

the cost if the tank was placed in their property. J. Boisvert said that he could not answer that question. 409 

Chairman Dunn asked J. Boisvert if he ever asked to place the tank on Woodmont property. J. Boisvert 410 

responded that it did not come up in their discussion, but Woodmont is aware of other sites on property 411 

that they own suitable for a water tank. Chairman Dunn asked about security concerns. J. Boisvert said 412 

there would be gates and video surveillance. B. Berardino asked how frequently a tank is inspected. J. 413 

Boisvert said it would be checked once a week. B. Berardino asked if the tank is cleaned. J. Boisvert said 414 

the inside of the tank is inspected once every five years. B. Berardino asked if any bacteria could form. J. 415 



 

12  

  

Boisvert said the water is disinfected when they receive it from MWW. B. Berardino asked if there was a 416 

way to get up to the top of the tank. J. Boisvert said through the doors on the pedestal with a ladder 417 

system on the inside. B. Berardino asked about a fence around it. J. Boisvert said the fence would be 418 

eight feet high with barbwire. B. Berardino said that would pose a safety issue for the kids in the 419 

neighborhood. J. Tirabassi asked about a breakdown of the cost analysis regarding the alternative 420 

options. J. Boisvert suggested that they could provide the Board with a formal engineering study if the 421 

case were to be continued. Chairman Dunn said that he feels that PEU has presented the alternative 422 

options already and does not think a formal study is needed nor would it assist the Board. J. Tirabassi 423 

said in his opinion, he would like more definitive results or studies. He asked if the tank was feasible on 424 

Woodmont land. J. Boisvert responded that it technically was feasible. 425 

 426 

Ray Breslin, Three Gary Drive, addressed the Board in opposition again. R. Breslin asked why the tank 427 

was not placed on Woodmont’s property to begin with.  428 

 429 

P. Panciocco asked the Board for a continuance for 60 days to be able to get an evaluation on the impact 430 

to the values of the homes.  431 

 432 

Matt Augeri, 34 Kitt Lane, addressed the Board again in opposition to the variance. M. Augeri told the 433 

Board that he did not think the Board should continue the case based on their lack of planning and 434 

presenting.  435 

 436 

P. Panciocco expressed concern over the testimony presented and the lack of testimony comparing 437 

property values with and without a water tank. Chairman Dunn said that he thought the applicant asked 438 

for a continuance because there was a lot of information to present. P. Panciocco answered they were 439 

continued because the agenda was full and they were at the end of the agenda and might not be reached. 440 

Chairman Dunn polled the Board for their input.  441 

 442 

B. Berardino made a motion to continue with CASE NO. 8/21/19-3 tonight.  443 

  444 

The motion was seconded by M. Feig. 445 

 446 

The motion was granted, 4-1-0.  447 

 448 

The Board closed public input and began its deliberation.  449 

 450 

(1) The variance would be contrary to the public interest: because it would alter the essential 451 

character of the neighborhood and is not consistent with the uses allowed in the AR-1 district.  452 



 

13  

  

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would not be observed: because the spirit is to protect residential 453 

neighborhoods and limit height.  454 

(3) Substantial justice would not be done: because the loss to the public would outweigh any gain to 455 

the applicant.  456 

(4) Values of the property would be diminished: because the Board received a significant amount of 457 

testimony from abutters and nearby residents as well as from two real estate agents that the values 458 

would be diminished.  459 

(5) There is a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of the 460 

ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because there is no 461 

uniqueness to the property and there are other viable options for the tank to be placed. The proposed 462 

use is not a reasonable one. 463 

 464 

S. Brunelle made a motion in CASE NO. 8/21/19-3 to deny the request for a variance 465 

from LZO section 4.2.1.3.4.D to allow a water tank 156 feet in height, where only 35 466 

feet in height is allowed, Seven Rear Gordon Drive, Map 10, Lot 142, Zoned AR-1, 467 

Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. (Owner & Applicant)  468 

 469 

B. Berardino seconded the motion.   470 

 471 

The motion was granted, 4-0-1.  The applicant’s request for a variance was denied. 472 

 473 

Chairman Dunn polled the Board to see if they wanted to continue or go to the overflow meeting. The 474 

consensus was to keep going with the cases. S. Brunelle left the meeting at this time, 11:15 p.m.  475 

 476 

 B. CASE NO. 7/17/19-5: Request for a variance from LZO 7.6.D.5.d to allow a free standing sign 477 

to be placed 0 feet from the property line where 10 feet is required, 6A Kitty Hawk Landing, 478 

Map 17 Lot 5-6, Zoned IND-I, Falling Water, LLC (Owner) and Jutras Signs (Applicant) - continued 479 

from August 21, 2019 meeting 480 

 481 

J. Tirabassi read the case into the record noting that it was continued from the August 21, 2019, meeting 482 

and there are no previous zoning cases. B. O’Brien came back to the Board at this point. Cathy 483 

Champagne from Jutras Signs, Inc., 30 Harvey Road, Bedford, NH addressed the Board. C. Champagne 484 

told the Board that she has some pictures (Exhibit A) for them to help clarify where the signs would be 485 

located, as that is why the case was continued last month. She reviewed the pictures with the Board 486 

noting where the signs would be. Chairman Dunn asked her why they could not have the sign 10 feet 487 

from the property line for Item 2 Option C. L. Gandia commented that the variance is for one sign only 488 

and points to the appropriate sign in question. Chairman Dunn asked if the sign in question was Item 1 489 



 

14  

  

Option C in the pictures. C. Champagne responded that was correct. Chairman Dunn asked why this sign 490 

could not go 10 feet into the property line. C. Champagne answered that the land is very rocky, has a 491 

swale that dips down quite a bit and a customer would never see it. R. Canuel noted that he accompanied 492 

the applicant out to the site stating that she is correct in her statement that if the sign was placed at the 493 

10 foot setback from the property line, the sign would be completely ineffective for the business. 494 

Chairman Dunn asked if the brush or rocks were cleared and a path was made for the sign to be 10 feet 495 

off the property line. R. Canuel said that would not help much at all due to the line of sight. Chairman 496 

Dunn said that the five points were read at the last meeting and asked if there were any changes. C. 497 

Champagne said they are the same.  498 

 499 

She then reviewed the five criteria for the granting of the variance:   500 

 501 

(1)  The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because the signs would not have 502 

an adverse effect on the health, safety or welfare of the general public.  503 

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed:  because it will not encourage visual clutter and by placing 504 

the signs ten feet from the property line the public is not best served.  505 

(3) Substantial justice is done:  because the loss to the applicant would outweigh any gain to the general 506 

public.  507 

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished:  because it would not alter the essential 508 

character of the neighborhood.   509 

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the 510 

ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the 511 

wooded area for sign #1 and the large expanse for sign #2 make it ineffective for the proposed sign. 512 

She stated that the proposed use is a reasonable one. 513 

 514 

Chairman Dunn asked for public input and there was none.  515 

 516 

The Board closed public input and began its deliberation.  517 

 518 

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it would not threaten the 519 

health, safety or welfare of the general public and would provide proper signage to the area.  520 

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it would threaten the health, safety or 521 

welfare of the general public or alter the essential character of the neighborhood.  522 

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant is greater than any gain to 523 

the public.   524 

(4) Values of the property would not be diminished: because it would not alter the essential 525 

character of the neighborhood.   526 



 

15  

  

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of 527 

the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the sign 528 

ordinance is to cut down on visual clutter and for people to know where they are going and placing 529 

the sign at the property line allows for this. The proposed use is a reasonable one. 530 

 531 

J. Tirabassi made a motion in CASE NO. 7/17/19-5 to grant the request for a variance 532 

from LZO 7.6.D.5.d to allow a free standing sign to be placed 0 feet from the property 533 

line where 10 feet is required, 6A Kitty Hawk Landing, Map 17 Lot 5-6, Zoned IND-I, 534 

Falling Water, LLC (Owner) and Jutras Signs (Applicant)  with the following condition: 535 

 536 

1. The sign will be noted as Item 1 Option C on Exhibit A 537 

 538 

B. Berardino seconded the motion.   539 

 540 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0.  The applicant’s request for a variance was granted. 541 

 542 

C. CASE NO. 9/18/19-1: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.1.6.A.1 to allow in the 543 

conservation overlay district the construction of an addition (45 SF impact) on a 544 

dwelling that did not exist prior to the adoption of section 4.6.1 Conservation Overlay 545 

District that is otherwise prohibited, Eight Tanager Way, Map 5 Lot 10-34, Zoned AR-546 

1, Ouellette Family Trust (Owner) and Jeff Moulton (Applicant) 547 

 548 

Chairman Dunn asked how the case made it on this month’s agenda, as it was after the deadline for 549 

applications to be received by the Board. He also asked if the Board was in good standing with the its 550 

rules of procedures and statutes and expressed concern in doing to right thing in relation to the fiduciary 551 

responsibility of the Board. L. Gandia told the Board that the Town Manager made the decision to allow 552 

this case to be on this month’s agenda due to the special circumstances of the case. Chairman Dunn 553 

asked if the Town Manager explained what the special circumstances were or asked for opinion from 554 

legal counsel. L. Gandia stated that she is not aware of conversations the Town Manager may or may 555 

not have had, but noted the applicant did meet all the statutory and notice requirements. Ryan Ouellette 556 

addressed the Board. R. Ouellette explained that he spoke to the Town Manager about notifying abutters 557 

and since all abutters had written letters in favor of allowing the addition as a whole, not necessarily a 558 

specific variance, he was under the impression this was why he was allowed on this month’s agenda. 559 

Chairman Dunn told the applicant that he appreciated the explanation, but said that it is specific to not 560 

being in compliance with the Board’s rules and procedures. He told the Board that this is his opinion and 561 

asked for the rest of the Board to weight in. B. Berardino said that he felt there should be no exceptions 562 

and the rules and procedures should be followed. Chairman Dunn suggested the case be continued so 563 



 

16  

  

the Board could ask legal counsel to review it. M. Feig asked what specifically N. Dunn was questioning. 564 

Chairman Dunn told M. Feig that the rules and procedures said the deadline to submit an application 565 

was August 20, 2019, for this month’s meeting, and the case was heard on August 21, 2019 noting the 566 

deadline had passed. He said at first he thought this was a mistake and the case should be on next 567 

month’s agenda. R. Ouellette said he thought the Town Manager had spoken to the Town Attorney. 568 

Chairman Dunn pointed out that had input been provided from the Town Attorney, he would feel better 569 

moving forward with the case, but unfortunately, it was not.   570 

 571 

J. Tirabassi made a motion to continue CASE NO. 9/18/19-1: Request for a variance 572 

from LZO 4.6.1.6.A.1 to allow in the conservation overlay district the construction of 573 

an addition (45 SF impact) on a dwelling that did not exist prior to the adoption of 574 

section 4.6.1 Conservation Overlay District that is otherwise prohibited, Eight 575 

Tanager Way, Map 5 Lot 10-34, Zoned AR-1, Ouellette Family Trust (Owner) and Jeff 576 

Moulton (Applicant) until October 16, 2019 to obtain input from the Town attorney. 577 

 578 

B. O’Brien seconded the motion.   579 

 580 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0.  The applicant’s case was continued until October 16, 581 

2019. 582 

 583 

II. Other business:   N/A 584 

 585 

Adjournment:   586 

 587 

B. Berardino made a motion to adjourn at 11:41 p.m.    588 

  589 

   J. Tirabassi seconded the motion.  590 

  591 

The motion was granted, 5-0-0.  The meeting adjourned at 11:41 p.m.  592 

    593 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,    594 

  595 

____________________________  596 

CLERK  597 

  598 

TYPED AND TRANSCRIBED BY Beth Morrison, Recording Secretary.  599 

APPROVED (X) WITH A MOTION MADE BY ____________________, SECONDED BY _____________, __ - __ - __.   600 






























































































